

NHS Trust

Strictly Private & Confidential To be Opened by Addressee Only

Fiona Cameron
General Manager
F&G Divisional Office
The Potteries, Wickham Road
Fareham
PO16 7ET

Trust Central Office

St James' Hospital Locksway Road Portsmouth Hants PO4 8LD

Tel Code A

Our Ref:

CHI/ch/vs

13 December 2001 Extn. 4003

Dear Fiona

Gosport War Memorial Hospital Investigation by the Commission for Health Improvement

The Commission for Health Improvement is currently undertaking an investigation into the provision and quality of care for older people at Gosport War Memorial Hospital. The Commission are specifically looking at the rehabilitation and continuing care of older people from 1998 to present day.

As part of the investigation, the Commission for Health Improvement have requested an interview with you on Tuesday 8 January 2002 at 09:30, at Gosport War Memorial Hospital. It is anticipated that each interview will last about 45 minutes. The Commission will endeavour to keep to the appointment times as closely as possible. Please report to the General Office (near the Out Patient Department) upon arrival.

You may of course be accompanied by a friend or staff representative. If you have any queries regarding this process please don't hesitate to contact any of the people listed overleaf.

Please would you confirm your attendance by completing the slip below and returning it to Viv Sykes, Administration Manager, Divisional Office (Learning Disabilities), Overton, St James' Hospital by 21 December 2001.

If for any reason you are unable to attend at the specified time or date please notify *Viv*Sykes on Code A by 21 December 2001.

I apologise for any inconvenience this appointment may cause, and thank you for your anticipated co-operation.

Yours sincerely	
Code A	
Code A	
Assistant Business Ma	nager/CHI visit Co-ordinator
CHI Interview Confirma	ation_

I confirm my attendance at my interview with CHI. Signed Code A - Date:

Please return to Viv Sykes

ode A - Date: 17/12/01

List of contacts

Fiona Cameron, General Manager, Code A

Jan Peach, Service Manager, Code A

Eileen Thomas, Nursing Director, Code A

Staff Representative Code A

Caroline Harrington, Assistant Business Manager/CHI visit Co-ordinator, Code A

Gosport investigation

Notes for people being interviewed by the CHI team

These notes are being sent to you with a letter asking you to attend a meeting with the Gosport investigation CHI team. The notes try to answer some of the most common questions people ask about CHI and why there is an investigation.

What is the Commission for Health Improvement (CHI)?

CHI was established on 1 April 2000, reporting directly to the Secretary of State for Health in England and the National Assembly in Wales. It has been set up to advise the NHS on improving the quality of patient care. CHI has four main functions:

- Reviewing clinical governance arrangements in the NHS. Clinical governance is a framework through which NHS organisations are accountable for continuously improving the quality of their services. CHI will review these arrangements in every Trust and Health Authority (SHA) in England and Wales over the next four years.
- Conducting investigations into serious service failures.
- Monitoring and reviewing the implementation of patient care standards as agreed through National Service Frameworks.
- Providing information for the development of best practice and disseminating clinical governance principles.

What is the team investigating?

In summary, CHI is looking at the quality of patient care for older people at the Gosport War Memorial Hospital. CHI will focus on continuing and rehabilitative care for inpatients.

The team will be looking at whether, since 1998, the systems the trust has in place to ensure good quality care have failed. CHI will look particularly at:

- > Staffing, training and accountability arrangements.
- > Arrangements for the administration of drugs.
- > The guidelines and practices followed to deliver good quality care.
- ➤ How the trust communicates with patients and their relatives and carers, in particular towards the end of life.
- > How lessons from previous complaints have been learnt and implemented.

The terms of reference should be enclosed with your letter for interview. Information is also posted on our website (www.chi.nhs.uk).

How will the investigating team work?

The investigating team will include a senior doctor, a senior nurse, a senior NHS manager, a lay representative and two investigation managers. CHI employs the investigation managers, but other team members are drawn from the NHS and community outside of the Portsmouth area.

During the investigation the CHI team will arrange to meet medical, nursing and other staff to discuss patient services. They will have relevant background information about

these services beforehand, for example, professional standards and information produced for patients.

CHI has the power to require NHS staff (including those working in general practice) to attend interviews but CHI would rather meet people on a voluntary basis and consult them about what can be learned for the future. Interviewees will not be asked about any allegations of potential negligence or individual conduct in the events that triggered the investigation. Thus they should not feel their personal position is jeopardised by meeting CHI. Our starting point is to look at systems to support the provision of high quality patient care.

There will also be stakeholder meetings where people not involved in the formal investigation may ask to meet the team. By "stakeholder" we mean anyone living or working in the area (including NHS staff and patients).

Can I bring someone with me?

Although interviews are conducted as informally as possible, they may cause anxiety. You are welcome to have someone with you. This might be a friend, or a member of a trade union or professional organisation, or a colleague. You are not allowed to have legal representation at the meeting. There is no requirement to bring someone with you, but if you do, that person must understand they cannot answer questions on your behalf and that the investigation is in private. They should not therefore disclose what happens during the interview to any one else. You should not bring someone with you who will be interviewed as part of the investigation.

What will happen during the interview?

Two or three members of the CHI team usually meet each interviewee. They will have specific questions to ask, but you will also have an opportunity to add anything you think is relevant. During the meeting, interviewees will have time to pause and reflect on the questions asked and on their answers.

Confidentiality

Although statements will not be taken in the form of a word for word record, it will be necessary to take notes of the key points during the interview. Interviews are not recorded. The aim will be to treat information provided in a confidential way, but if we need to quote specific information, we will check the accuracy of that information with you before it is included in the report.

In certain circumstances, CHI may disclose or be required to disclose confidential information (including that contained in notes made during interviews) to other organisations, such as the relevant professional body or the police, in relation to the matters which CHI is investigating.

How is the investigation reported?

A written report will be made to the Secretary of State for Health. It will be made available to you and other interviewees, and others on request. It will also be published on CHI's website www.chi.nhs.uk

Further information?

If arrangements for your interview were made through someone at Portsmouth Healthcare NHS Trust, please contact that person in the first place. Additional information can be obtained from the CHI Investigation Manager, Julie Miller 020 7448 9323.

November 2001

Terms of reference

- Concerns have been raised with CHI about the quality of patient care for older people at the 1. Gosport War Memorial Hospital. These concerns include the following:
 - Arrangements for the administration of drugs (i)
 - Transfer arrangements for patients between the Gosport War Memorial Hospital (ii) and other local hospitals
 - Responsibility for patient care (iii)
 - The culture in which care is provided (iv)
- As a result, in September 2001 CHI decided to undertake an investigation into the 2. management, provision and quality of healthcare for which Portsmouth Healthcare NHS Trust is responsible at the Gosport War Memorial Hospital.
- The investigation will look at whether, since 1998, there had been a failure of trust systems 3. to ensure good quality patient care. The investigation will focus on the following elements within services for older people (inpatient, continuing and rehabilitative care) at Gosport War Memorial Hospital.
 - Staffing and accountability arrangements, including out of hours. (i)
 - The guidelines and practices in place at the trust to ensure good quality care and (ii) effective performance management.
 - Arrangements for the prescription, administration, review and recording of drugs. (iii)
 - Communication and collaboration between the trust and patients, their relatives and (iv) carers and with partner organisations.
 - Arrangements to support patients and their relatives and carers towards the end of (v) the patients life
 - Supervision and training arrangements in place to enable staff to provide effective (vi) care.
- In addition, CHI will examine how lessons to improve care have been learnt across the trust 4. from patient complaints.
- The investigation will also look at the adequacy of the trusts clinical governance arrangements 5. to support inpatient continuing and rehabilitative care for older people.

Note:

Gosport War Memorial Hospital is managed by Portsmouth Healthcare NHS Trust and will become part of a Primary Care Trust (PCT) in April 2002.